
     

 

 
Notice of a public  
Decision Session - Executive Member for Economic Development 

and Community Engagement 
 
To: Councillor Aspden (Executive Member) 

 
Date: Tuesday, 4 December 2018 

 
Time: 2.00 pm 

 
Venue: The Thornton Room - Ground Floor, West Offices (G039) 

 
A G E N D A 

 

Notice to Members – Post Decision Calling In: 
 
Members are reminded that, should they wish to call in any item* on 
this agenda, notice must be given to Democracy Support Group by: 
 
4:00 pm on Thursday 6 December 2018 if an item is called in after 
a decision has been taken. 
 
*With the exception of matters that have been subject of a previous 
call in, require Full Council approval or are urgent which are not 
subject to the call-in provisions. Any called in items will be 
considered by the Customer and Corporate Services Scrutiny 
Management Committee. 

 
Written representations in respect of item on this agenda should be 
submitted to Democratic Services by 5.00pm on Friday 30 November 
2018. 
 
1. Declarations of Interest    
 At this point in the meeting, the Executive Member is asked to 

declare: 

 any personal interests not included on the Register of 
Interests  

 any prejudicial interests or  

 any disclosable pecuniary interests 
which he may have in respect of business on this agenda. 
 



 

2. Exclusion of Press and Public    
 To consider the exclusion of the press and public from the 

meeting during consideration of the following: 
  
Annexes A and B to agenda item 5 (Attracting new Inward 
Investment through Promotion of our Historic Assets and 
Development of Shared Vision for York) on the grounds that they 
contain information relating to the financial or business affairs of 
any particular person (including the authority holding that 
information). This information is classed as exempt under 
paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A to Section 100A of the Local 
Government Act 1972 (as revised by The Local Government 
(Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006). 
 

3. Minutes   (Pages 1 - 4) 
 To approve and sign the minutes of the meeting held on 6 

November 2018.  
 

4. Public Participation   
At this point in the meeting, members of the public who have registered to 
speak can do so. The deadline for registering is 5.00pm on Monday 3 
December 2018.  Members of the public can speak on agenda items or 
matters within the Executive Member’s remit. 
 
To register to speak please contact the Democracy Officer for the meeting, 
on the details at the foot of the agenda.  
 
Filming, Recording or Webcasting Meetings 
Please note that, subject to available resources, this meeting will be filmed 
and webcast, or recorded, including any registered public speakers who 
have given their permission.  The broadcast can be viewed at 
http://www.york.gov.uk/webcasts or, if recorded, this will be uploaded onto 
the Council’s website following the meeting. 
 
Residents are welcome to photograph, film or record Councillors and 
Officers at all meetings open to the press and public. This includes the use 
of social media reporting, i.e. tweeting.  Anyone wishing to film, record or 
take photos at any public meeting should contact the Democracy Officer 
(contact details are at the foot of this agenda) in advance of the meeting. 
 
The Council’s protocol on Webcasting, Filming & Recording of Meetings 
ensures that these practices are carried out in a manner both respectful 
to the conduct of the meeting and all those present.  It can be viewed at  
 
https://www.york.gov.uk/downloads/file/11406/protocol_for_webcasting_fi
lming_and_recording_of_council_meetings_20160809  
 

 

http://www.york.gov.uk/webcasts
https://www.york.gov.uk/downloads/file/11406/protocol_for_webcasting_filming_and_recording_of_council_meetings_20160809
https://www.york.gov.uk/downloads/file/11406/protocol_for_webcasting_filming_and_recording_of_council_meetings_20160809


 

  
 

5. Attracting new Inward Investment through 
Promotion of our Historic Assets and 
development of shared vision for York   

(Pages 5 - 46) 

 This report provides the Executive Member with an update about 
governance arrangements on promotional activity to support the 
Economic Strategy and increase inward investment and the 
value of the economy. 
 

6. Urgent Business    
 Any other business which the Executive Member considers 

urgent under the Local Government Act 1972. 
 

Democracy Officer 
Angela Bielby   
Contact details:  

 Telephone – (01904) 552599 

 Email – a.bielby@york.gov.uk 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

For more information about any of the following please contact the 
Democracy Officer responsible for servicing this meeting  
 

 Registering to speak 

 Written Representations 

 Business of the meeting 

 Any special arrangements 

 Copies of reports 
 

Contact details are set out above 

 
 

mailto:a.bielby@york.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



City of York Council Committee Minutes 

Meeting Decision Session - Executive Member for 
Economic Development and Community 
Engagement 

Date 6 November 2018 

Present Councillor Aspden 

  

 
9. Declarations of Interest  
 
The Executive Member was asked to declare any personal interests 
not included on the Register of Interests, or any prejudicial or 
disclosable pecuniary interests that he might have in respect of the 
business on the agenda. None were declared.  
 
 
10. Minutes  
 
Resolved:   That the minutes of the last Decision Session held on 3 

July 2018 be approved as a correct record and signed by 
the Executive Member. 

 
 
11. Public Participation  
 
It was reported that there had been one registration to speak on 
Agenda Item 4 (York’s City Centre Economy) under the Council’s 
Public Participation Scheme. 
 
 
12. York’s City Centre Economy  
 
The Executive Member considered a report that summarised current 
understanding of the City Centre economy, progress to date in 
addressing current challenges, and the options available for short and 
medium term measures to support sustainable growth in the 
economy, with a particular emphasis on retail and the city centre.  

 
Dave Merrett spoke in relation to the report. He expressed concern 
that there was an emphasis on retail rather than office space. He 
noted that the availability of office space in York was limited and he 

Page 1 Agenda Item 3



urged the Council to look at this. He added that in terms of railway 
employers, it was difficult to find accommodation in the city. He noted 
the danger if the residual office sector was not protected, suggesting 
that York could be vulnerable to companies deciding to leave York. 

 
The Head of Economic Growth gave an overview of the report. The 
Corporate Director of Economy and Place responded to the points 
made by Dave Merrett. He noted that office space for the city centre 
was part of the city centre strategy, and there was to be a dialogue on 
this as part of Business Week. He outlined the office space planned 
as part of the York Central programme adding that as part of the My 
City Centre consultation the use of space would be looked at as part 
of the vision for the future of the city centre.  

 
In response to a question from the Executive Member, the Head of 
Economic Growth explained the timescales for the recommendations 
as detailed in paragraph 6 of the report. He was also asked and 
explained that the cluster of vacancies in Coney Street arose from the 
leases coming up at the same time, a number of which properties 
were owned by overseas companies. It was noted that the Council 
had worked with the National Trust, who owned a property on Coney 
Street, adding that the Council did not own any property on Coney 
Street. 

 
Resolved:   

i. That the Head of Economic Growth be instructed to bring back 
a report outlining the impact of Business Rates on retailers in 
the city centre and options to mitigate that impact, if 
appropriate. 

 
Reason: To support the City Centre Economy. 

 
ii. That the Head of Economic Growth be instructed to widen the 

remit of research approved through the Secondary Retail areas 
funding agreed in June 2018 to cover the city centre, 
neighbourhood shopping areas and out-of-town retail.  

 
Reason: To support economic growth across the city. 

 
iii. That the Head of Economic Growth be instructed to explore 

options to reduce the occupancy costs and environmental 
impact of our retail portfolio through the use of low energy 
lighting and heating and the installation of low-carbon energy 
systems, and to bring back costed proposals for the 2019-20 
budget.   

Page 2



 
Reason: To support the city centre economy. 

 
iv. That the Head of Economic Growth be instructed to bring 

forward costed proposals which would support the development 
of traders’ associations and the broader network of independent 
traders across the city, and explore the potential for York to 
make an application as a city to the High Street of the Year 
awards for 2019. 

 
Reason:  To support the independent traders as a sector, 

ensuring the vibrancy of our city centre offer. 
 

v. That the Head of Economic Growth be instructed to make 
arrangements to pass the surplus Christmas decorations that 
the Council holds to Acomb Alive and Haxby Town Council to 
enhance their local decorations. 

 
Reason:  To further support the vibrancy of our Secondary 

Retail areas. 
 

vi. That the Executive Member consult with other Group Leaders 
to seek national agreement on removing Permitted 
Development Rights for office conversions in the city centre. 

 
Reason: To support the City Centre Economy. 

 
 
 
 
 
Cllr K Aspden, Chair 
[The meeting started at 2.00 pm and finished at 2.25 pm]. 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 4



 

 

  
 

   

 
Decision Session – Executive Member for 
Economic Development and Community 
Engagement  
 
 

4 December 2018 

Report of the Corporate Director of Economy and Place 
 

Attracting new Inward Investment through Promotion of our Historic 
Assets and developing a shared vision for York 
 
 
Summary 

 
1. To provide the Executive Member with an update about governance 

arrangements on promotional activity to support the Economic Strategy 
and increase inward investment and the value of the economy. 

 
Recommendations 
 
2. The Executive is asked to:  

 
1) Endorse the proposed governance structure 
 
Reason: There are many stakeholders involved in shaping a shared 
vision for York. Examples include education/university, tourism and 
hospitality, arts and heritage, financial, science, commercial, etc.  To 
build ongoing engagement it is important these stakeholders and 
partners have opportunity to provide comment and challenge. The 
proposed governance structure provides space for different sectors and 
target audiences to have a role in shaping the vision, whilst progressing 
conversations to a conclusion. 
 
2) Endorse the staged process to develop the shared vision and 

promotional activity 
 
Reason: We have successfully secured funds from the LCR business 
rates pilot to increase inward investment and the value of the economy 
through taking a joined up approach to promoting the city’s strengths 

Page 5 Agenda Item 5



 

and assets.  The project takes a staged approach to ensure we deliver 
activity based on evidence.  It also encompasses evaluating the impact 
of activity throughout the duration of the project to leave a framework 
we can then continue to use once the project concludes. 

 
Background 
 

3. The Leeds City Region (LCR) business pilot project to fund a project to 
attract increased investment by promoting our strengths and assets and 
developing a shared vision has been approved and funds from LCR are 
now available. 

4. This project proposal developed following discussions with key individuals 
across the city, including universities, Make It York, the York BID and the 
Head of Comms Group, together with regional partners WYCA and 
NYYER LEP. 

5. York is evolving.  We are in the midst of unprecedented regeneration 
providing huge commercial and economic opportunity for York.  This 
project sets out to join together our place making across the city to 
develop a shared vision for York, rooted in our considerable strengths and 
assets. 

6. The project is set out in Annex A – it aims to: 

a. Engage residents:  connect residents to the whole city, building their 
confidence, harnessing their energy, curating their stories to show 
how they are the story of York.  Ensure resident pride in the city is 
conveyed and harnessed. 

b. Evolve perception: Build on city strengths to enhance the regional, 
national and international perception of York for all its key audiences  

c. Attract investment: Draw on the shared perception to build an 
understanding amongst inward investors and property developers of 
future opportunities. 

d. Attracting visitors: Increase spend in the tourism sector by 
continuing to attract a higher value and longer staying visitor. 

7. Target audiences for the project are residents, employees who work but 
don’t live in the city, higher value current and potential visitors, potential 
and recent property developers, inward investors and business owners.  

 

Page 6



 

8. A strong shared narrative, used and championed by different York 
stakeholders will help consolidate and amplify answers to the below:  

 

 Why should I re-locate my business in York? 

 Why should I book a short break in York? 

 Why should I invest in a new property development in York? 

 Why should I live / return to live in York? 
 

Project approach 

9. We will take a staged approach to developing a shared narrative and 
supporting promotional activity.  This approach aims to create a 
framework for future inward investment promotional activity that can 
continue beyond the lifespan of the project. 

10. York already has strong and well recognised promotional activity used 
successfully to attract the many millions of visitors each year.  In addition, 
our different stakeholders and partners across the city tell their own story 
through their own promotional activity.  This project will create an 
overarching approach to marketing the city, by creating one shared 
narrative that will speak to target audiences, be clear and enduring. 
Stakeholders will be able to use this shared narrative in addition to their 
core messages. 

11. We will develop an evidence base comprised of audience insight, 
stakeholder and partner engagement, the current perception of York and 
collation of our strengths and assets including regeneration outcomes to 
develop a single unifying vision.  This vision will be uniquely and 
authentically York, and dock into the regional Yorkshire story 
(complementing both the LEPs and One Yorkshire promotional activities). 

12. We will embed this vision through a series of experiences, including digital 
(broadcasting our story to a wide, international, audience), provide a 
cultural experience for residents and create marketing content targeted to 
key audiences to attract inward investment. 

13. We will inspire residents to share their stories and bring to life the 
strengths and assets of York. Our pride in the city will build and promote 
confidence in York. 

14. The stories will be used to target wealth creators and property developers 
to drive excitement about our scarce commercial space, aiming to attract 
significant and high profile commercial interests for York Central, Castle 
Gateway or Guildhall.   

Page 7



 

15. Finally, we will measure our success against our outcome framework 
(Annex A), working with regional partners to support the vision for the 
region. 

16. This project underpins several other projects (funded from multiple 
sources) to ensure the single unified vision is either derived from, 
influences or augments different place making projects currently 
underway: 

a) Story-telling  
Telling the story of our place making through one unified vision (this 
project) 

b) My City Centre  
This project will draw on the research and community engagement 
phase of My City Centre to create a shared understanding of place and 
how places change 

c) Castle Gateway  
The Castle Gateway project will develop digital collateral to bring to life 
the public realm ask of residents (funded by the LCR business pilot) 
which further adds to the place making story of York 

d) Cultural commission  
We will combine the LCR business rates pilot funds to hold a cultural 
experience (outlined in the My Castle Gateway and place-based 
narrative projects) to help residents physically experience the narrative.  
This will form a separate paper to CMT/decision makers 

 Digital experience - Planning colleagues will work with partners to 
develop an augmented reality immersive experience that engages 
wealth creators and inward investors.  They will ensure this digital 
experience is future-proof, can be maintained and is commercially 
viable, bringing to life key themes from the vision whilst providing the 
opportunity to showcase planning schemes.   

e) Place making strategies 
This project also makes sure we have an overarching place-based 
vision to create consistency in message, avoiding the risk of 
fragmenting the sense of place into a series of themes. For example, 
the cultural (Arts and Heritage) strategy and creative industries strategy 
both draw on a single unified York vision to enable delivery, including 
raising visibility and having a consistent marketing and communications 
approach.   

Page 8



 

Consultation  
 

17. Since the LCR business pilot funding was agreed, we shared the design 
of the project (Annex A) with the Universities, Head of Comms Group, 
NYYER and a scoping group comprised of Make It York, Mediale, WYCA 
and CYC.  There is agreement that this project will support wider 
promotional activities, if we have appropriate governance processes in 
place. 

18. A recent stakeholder survey has been conducted and respondents told us 
that only: 

 54% of respondents are clear about the overall ambition and areas of 

focus for York 

 38% of respondents believe the city delivers a unified voice regionally, 

nationally and internationally. 

19. This reinforces the need to unify York’s vision to focus on the whole of 

York rather than key city themes.   

20. Make It York aims to have completed the Tourism Strategy before 
Christmas.   Early discussions with the Head of Visit York include drawing 
on the output of this project at the appropriate time. 

Governance 

21. Make It York are crucial partners in developing and embedding the vision 
and are involved through all stages of the project (including initiation). 

22. The project is comprised of four delivery stages with a supporting 
governance structure proposed.  It recognises this is a city challenge and 
as such will be delivered in partnership with sector leaders and audiences 
representing the city, together with opportunity for Executive members to 
provide insight and challenge at key points throughout. 

23. Overarching strategic direction, approvals, challenge and project 
management (specifically supporting risk management) will be provided 
by the City Partnership Group.  This group will be comprised of senior 
representatives from across the city, including Cllr Aspden and Cllr Myers.  
The Director of Economy and Place, as project sponsor, will chair.  

24. At key decision points throughout the project life cycle, the City 
Partnership Group provides insight and recommendations to Executive for 
their consideration.  Executive will be invited to comment on the evidence-

Page 9



 

based recommendations and endorse the direction of travel.    Project 
management and delivery will be led by the Director of Economy and 
Place as project sponsor, in consultation with the Executive member for 
Economic Development, Cllr Aspden. 

25. Operational delivery will be delivered via the Operational Delivery Group, 
chaired by the CYC Project Manager with attendees from CYC and 
partners.  This group will share progress, update risks, escalate issues, 
take actions and propose solutions.    

26. There are two steering groups who will, at the appropriate stage, advise 
the City Partnership group or influence the operational delivery group.  
These steering groups are aligned to different stages of delivery, 
explained below: 

Stage 1 – research and design  

27. The research and design stage will be governed by the “narrative steering 
group” comprised of representatives from the different sectors 
representing York (see Annex A).  Many of these representatives have 
already been approached and are happy to join “a coalition of the willing”.   

28. The narrative steering group will draw on the available insight and 
evidence to help shape a single unifying vision that is undoubtedly 
unequivocally authentically York.  They will provide challenge and support 
to the agency (below) to make sure the sector they represent views are 
heard. 

29. Representatives of this group will commission a specialist place-based 
agency to: 

 Understand perceptions of target audiences and what would most 
attract them to invest/live/visit/study/work/do business in the city 

 Develop an engagement framework to structure conversations with 
different target audiences so they can describe their understanding of a 
vision for York. 

 Deliver an engagement process to engage different audiences 
including in areas of deprivation, using geo-targeting to encourage 
people to engage in changing perception.  

 Collate proof points and features that are unexpected and unique to 
York, including drawing on regeneration and place making initiatives 
underway 

Page 10



 

 Condense the target audience insight into a core easy-to-understand, 
authentic, vision with a hierarchy of messages that most appeal to the 
audience (s) 

 Test different ideas with different audiences throughout Spring 2019 

 

Stage 2 – development 

30. The development stage will be governed by the “marketing steering 
group” comprised of representatives of the target audiences the vision 
speaks to (see Annex A).  Several individuals have already volunteered to 
be part of this group.    

31. The purpose of this stage is to draw on the narrative to evolve the target 
audiences perception, and will include: 

 Drawing on work underway in Make It York to create a toolkit with 
flexible and consistent elements.  This toolkit will be shared with city 
and community partners to ensure the narrative is presented 
consistently and authentically. 

 Producing content that appeals to the target audiences and can be 
used by partners for example, a series of social media posts, videos, 
photo library and a high quality prospectus that showcases the very 
best of York, promoting organisations that share the vision themes.  
The videos will be produced by Make It York. 

 In addition, although still part of Stage 2, the below two experiences will 
be created with identified city partners by drawing on the vision : 

 Cultural commission – York Mediale will be approached to develop a 
cultural experience.  This cultural experience aims to bring to life the 
vision and inspire and engage residents, building on lessons from the 
2018 York Mediale Festival.  It will combine funding from the other LCR 
business rates pilot, My Castlegateway to demonstrate how public 
realm can tell the story of York in innovative and surprising ways, 
working closely with cultural partners in the area.  

 Digital experience - Planning colleagues will work with partners to 
develop an augmented reality immersive experience that engages 
wealth creators and inward investors.  They will ensure this digital 
experience is future-proof, can be maintained and is commercially 

Page 11



 

viable, bringing to life key themes from the vision whilst providing the 
opportunity to showcase planning schemes.   

32. The marketing steering group will ensure the narrative is curated through 
these different experiences in an audience appropriate way to meet the 
outcomes.  They will challenge how the narrative is adapted to meet 
different audience needs, whilst retaining the integrity of the narrative. 

33. The project manager will be responsible for ensuring a defined set of key 
activities are agreed with the appointed agency including a simple way of 
evaluating this.   

34. Sustainability of the project will be built into the criteria for recruiting the 
agency.   

Current status 

35. The project manager post, funded by the LCR project, is due to be 
advertised.  The recruitment panel comprises MIY, CYC and York St John 
representatives.  The post will be interviewed in January. 

Option 
 

36. The Request for Quotation (RFQ) is now ready to be tendered and 
attached in Annex B.  Costs will be covered by the LCR business pilot 
fund.  The RFQ has had content contributions from MIY and the Head of 
Comms group. 

37. The Executive member is asked to endorse the staged approach, 
supporting governance and confirm we can now progress to recruitment 
of the agency and recruitment of the project manager. 

Analysis 
 

38. Advantage: The RFQ for the agency who will deliver stage 1 has been 
prepared with input from the Head of Comms group and MIY. Attracting 
an experienced, credible agency with expertise in developing city inward 
investment narratives that draws on existing strengths and assets is 
crucial to build confidence amongst city partners. 

39. Disadvantage: Due to the complexity of York, the many different sectors 
and opportunities, there will need to be strong and determined leadership 
to create the right conditions for a vision to be developed, agreed and 
shared.   Recruiting the agency who can deliver this challenge is 
recognised in the proposed budget.  

Page 12



 

 
Council Plan 

 
40. This project contributes to the economic development strategy. 

 
Implications 
 

 Financial Funding has been provided by the LCR business rates pilot 
 Human Resources (HR) Recruitment of the project manager  has 

followed CYC processes 
 Equalities none 
 Legal none 
 Crime and Disorder none        
 Information Technology (IT) IT will be involved in the development of 

the digital experience 
 Property none 
 Other 

MIY have been involved throughout the development of this proposal 
and any works will be sub-contracted to them via the Tecla agreement. 

 
Risk Management 

 
41. Risks at this stage include 

a. Related strategies will create their own York vision that will then 
undermine this project and each other.  To mitigate the risk, we have 
engaged stakeholders and partners throughout to manage 
expectations and help define the project scope. 

b. To realise the outcomes of the project, the vision will need to be 
championed by all key city influencers, with stakeholder engagement 
a key component. Given the forthcoming election, we recommend the 
project progresses to the research and design stage with audience 
testing taking place throughout spring and Executive decisions post 
election. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 13



 

Contact Details 
 
Author: 

Chief Officer Responsible for the report: 
 

Claire Foale 
Head of Communications 
01904 552057. 
 
 

Neil Ferris 
Director of Economy and Place 
 

Report 
Approved 

√ 
Date 22/11/18 

 
 

    
Specialist Implications Officer(s)   
 
Ian Floyd (LCR funding), Director CCS 
Charlie Croft (cultural experience) AD Culture and Communities 
Simon Brereton (Economic Development Strategy), Head of Economic 
Development 
Will Boardman (Strategy), Head of Policy 
Julia Massey (Skills), Head of Skills and Development 
 

Wards Affected:   All √ 

 
For further information please contact the author of the report 
 
Background Papers: 
Annexes (not for publication) 
Annex A – Project overview  
Annex B – Request for Quotation 
 
List of Abbreviations Used in this Report 
 
CYC – City of York Council 
LCR – Leeds City region  
LEP – Local Enterprise Partnership 
MIY – Make it York 
NYYER – North Yorkshire, York and East Riding LEP 
RFQ – Request for quotation 
WYCA – West Yorkshire Combined Authority 

Page 14



Document is Restricted

Page 15
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 29
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	Minutes

	5 Attracting new Inward Investment through Promotion of our Historic Assets and development of shared vision for York
	Annex A
	Annex B


